
* Denotes items that have supporting documentation

AGENDA OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

September 28th, 2023 
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER  

PUBLIC FORUM 

APPROVE AGENDA 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Approve June Meeting Minutes* (pp. 2-3)

B. Discuss new dates for the November and December meetings.

C. 127 Wildwood Conditional Use Permit* (pp. 4-14)

D. Fence Ordinance Update Review* (pp. 15-18)

ADJOURN 

1



                     MEETING MINUTES (Draft)  

          Birchwood Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

                                               City Hall - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting 6/22/2023 

     Submitted by Michael Kraemer – secretary 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: –– Andy Sorenson - Chairman, Joe Evans, Michelle Maiers-
Atakpu, Michael Kraemer, Michael McKenzie 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT 

OTHERS PRESENT: Council Member – Justin McCarthy, Council Member     

  TO ORDER: Meeting called to order by Chairman Andy Sorenson at 7:01 PM. 

1. PUBLIC FORUM – No one present 
2. APPROVE AGENDA 

a. Maiers-Atakpu, moved, 2nd by Evans, to add an Item C – Request a 
Council/Planning Commission/Staff work session/discussion meeting in the near 
future to discuss City internal communications and coordination processes. Vote: 
Yes – 5, No – 0. Motion to approve amended agenda passed.  

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
a. Item A – Review/Approve May 25, 2023, Meeting Minutes 

i. Maiers-Atakpu, moved, 2nd by Evans, to approve the minutes. Vote: Yes 
– 5, No – 0, Motion to approve the minutes passed. 

b. Item B – Review Draft Setback Amendment 
i.  Council Member Justin McCarthy was present to lead discussion on 

potential changes to City Code Section – 302.020 STRUCTURE 
LOCATION REQUIREMENTS – 2. MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIREMENTS. 
Items discussed include: 

1. Structure Setback from municipal and county roads. Consider 
change from 40’ to 30’. 

2. Fence Setback from municipal and county roads.  Consider change 
from 20’ to 10’. 

3. Retaining Wall Setback from OHW. Consider change from 50’ to 
10’ 

ii. Planning Commission offered discussion points pro/cons for 
consideration and took no formal action requested nor taken.  

c. Item C - Council/Planning Commission/Staff work session – Topic: City 
communication and coordination. 

i. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:  Motion by Maiers-Atakpu, 2nd by 
Evans, requesting the Council authorize a joint Council/Planning 

2



Commission/Staff work session to review internal communications 
processes.   Advisory Vote: Yes – 5, No - 0 

4. ADJOURN 9:27 PM 
a. Motion by Evans, 2nd by McKenzie to adjourn meeting. Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0. 

Motion passed.  

 

  

3



memo 

 
Application and Background 
Amy Johannson of Greener Side Irrigation and Landscaping, on behalf of property owners Alan and 
Susan Reiss, has applied for a land disturbance permit to allow landscape work on the slope to White 
Bear Lake on the property at 127 Wildwood Avenue.  This requires approval of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
The property files show that a building permit for an addition and upgrades was approved in 2022 and a 
variance application was made in early 2023 to allow construction of a deck on the lake side.  
 
The property is 7,794 square feet and 55’ wide.  The previously approved impervious surface percentage 
is 28.8%.  An existing conditions survey is attached to this memo. 
 
The aerial image below (from Washington County GIS) shows the property. 
 

 
 
 

To: Birchwood Village Planning Commission 

From:  Ben Wikstrom, Planning Consultant 

CC:   

Date: September 28, 2023 Meeting 

Re: Conditional Use Permit Application – 127 Wildwood Avenue 

4



Proposed Project  
The application with a project narrative is attached to this memo.  In summary, the work will entail the 
following: 
 

• Restoration of landscaping and vegetation impacted by previous construction 
• Replacement of steps to lake 
• Removal of a section of retaining wall, to be replaced with boulders to match rip rap 
• Stabilization of slope with native plantings 
• Improvement of drainage and filtration 
• Installation of paver walkway (not lakeside) and small seating area 

 
Conditional Use Permit – Pertinent Ordinance Language, Requirements, and Standards  
306.020.  
CONDITIONAL USE REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.  
Applications for Conditional Uses must include Required Information and demonstrate that the 
Requirements and Standards for each Conditional Use will be met. See Section 301.070 for uses 
requiring Conditional Use Permits.  
 
306.030.  
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR LAND DISTURBANCE ACTIVITY.  
1. Purpose. The purpose of Section 306.030 is to control or eliminate storm water runoff, soil erosion, 
and sedimentation in the City and adjacent jurisdictions. 
2. No permit for any land disturbance activity shall be granted until the applicant obtains all necessary 
approvals from the Department of Natural Resources, the Rice Creek Watershed District, the White Bear 
Lake Conservation District, and any Agency, Department or Government entity which has jurisdiction 
over the project. 
 
301.070  
CONDITIONAL USES.  
Certain accessory uses permitted within the City have greater than usual chances to present safety 
hazards, impact on neighboring people and property, and nuisance situations. Because of these greater 
effects, the City requires these uses to be covered under Conditional Use Permits. Applications for 
Conditional Use Permits must comply with all provisions of Section 306. CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS. 
 
1. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for the following projects: 
 

a. Any land disturbance activity where the slope is toward a lake, pond, wetland, or watercourse 
leading to such waters, and the alteration is closer to such waters than the structure setback 
requirement. 

 
 
Staff Comments 
The proposed work will be an improvement to deteriorating or previously impacted conditions.  The 
application narrative outlines the scope of the work, and the reasons for each facet seem reasonable 
and within the requirements of the ordinance.   
 

5



The proposed steps will be constructed with spacing adequate to not be considered impervious surface.  
Because of the removal of deteriorating steps and impervious surface, a replacement of the subtracted 
percentage is allowed, which will be added with the pavers and seating area.  See the submitted surveys 
and plan set for more information.   
 
The applicant states that the project has received approval of the White Bear Lake Conservation District, 
and the Rice Creek Watershed District and DNR approvals are in process.  
 
The improvements to the conditions of the site and the drainage patterns and filtration system are 
warranted and encouraged. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
As with any conditional use permit, general findings are laid out based on ordinance requirements.  In 
this case, the applicable findings are as follows: 
 

1. The proposal is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
2. The proposal is consistent with existing and future land uses in the area. 
3. The proposal conforms to the Zoning Code requirements. 
4. That the proposed action will not: 

a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, 
b. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding 

area, 
c. In any other respect impair the public health, safety or welfare or the residents of the 

City. 
d. Depreciate values in the area. 
e. Over-burden neither the existing public services nor the capacity of the City to serve the 

area. 
f. Alter traffic generation beyond the capabilities of the streets serving the site. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for 127 Wildwood Avenue, with the 
conditions listed below. 
 
Recommended Conditions 

1. Placement of natural rock riprap, including associated grading of the shoreline and placement of 
a filter blanket, is permitted if the finished slope does not exceed three (3) feet horizontal to one 
(1) foot vertical, the landward extent of the riprap is within ten (10) feet of the ordinary high 
water level, and the height of the riprap above the ordinary high water level does not exceed 
three (3) feet (Code Section 302.055.2.a.6). 

2. Each CUP issued by the City shall be recorded with the County Recorder (Code Section 
306.080.9). 

3. A Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void one year after it was granted, unless made 
use of within the year, or a longer period of time if prescribed by the Council at the time the 
permit is issued (Code Section 306.090.2). 

4. If approved, a CUP may be approved subject to the following conditions:  
a. The Council may require posting of a bond or other guarantee to insure compliance with 

its conditions (Code Section 306.080.8). 
b. All application materials, maps, drawings and descriptive information submitted with 

this application shall become part of the CUP. 

6



c. Land alteration my not cause adverse impact upon abutting property.  
5. No permit for any land disturbance activity shall be granted until the applicant obtains all 

necessary approvals from the Department of Natural Resources, the Rice Creek Watershed 
District, the White Bear Lake Conservation District, and any Agency, Department or Government 
entity which has jurisdiction over the project. 

6. Any other conditions as required by the City Engineer or City Council. 
 
 
 
 

7



����������	�
�������
	�
�����������
����	���������

	������������������������������ �!�"����������� ���#���	�����
�	$���%&'&()&*+,���-�.**/01.203-�,34�.��3-+0203-./�567�
74802�97�.47�/33:0-;�23���<���������=#�>������������������� �!�"��?�  #�>@�A�>����#����� ��� ������B#�>���!�����C!�#�����D� �������#���B����������E#��#�>�A�>����#���B��� �����F� G�H��D�I���>�� #�>�����������#�������������C����!����C����� � ��#��>��B#���?��!���>� G�<��������=#�>�����D���C�������!���������� � #��C�?��!��@�����D�B������C����@���#������#����� ���F�"��!�#A� �#�!��A��#��!�����������#>�?����� G��<����A���""��A����?��#�� ����D�����<�#���J����K�����A��#��@�B������!C������F�B��=#�>�B#���L#!��K���=�<������� �����?��#�����#���""��A����� �B������!C������F�B��=#�>�B#���<�#���J����MHL�����?��#�����#���""��A���N������OGPQGRSRTUG��V���������!�CD?�#�>��� �C������!��!��������"�� �B�����������=��# �������B����� ������D�A���� ���"��!��B#���B�� ������"�������B#���D��������#D"��A#�C���"�!#�>�>C# ��#���G��W��"� ��#���# ��B#���?����D�A� �����"��� #�>�B�� ���� ���"����� �B#������#A���� �>��C� ����?#�#X#�>�"������A#�����#�#��L�������#��@�B���B#��������D�#���#���������"��DC��#"����#D���"���F���G��<���������=#�>������D�A������!�#�����������E#��#�>�!�CD?�#�>��� �C����������#�#�>�B������ ���"��!�����C�����#"���"�?�C� �������D��!��C"�����E#��#�>��#"���"����#��G��<��B#���?���  #�>� ��#����� �������D�����>C����� �B��"�C�������C������� �F�!���=��� ���!�C��>�����C�����#�����#����������B�����# �G�V���������# ��B#�����A����� �����D"�F����"�������� � ��#��#��G��<����A�����������?F������E#��#�>� �!=������#������#�>��� �C�����@�B��B�C� ��#=�������D�A����#���� ���"��!��B#�����RGYZ�!��#"���JJ� �!# C�C������G��<���������=#�>����#�����������B����C����������"�A���B��=B�F����D����� �#A�B�F������������������"@����D��������#�>������?F�����?�!=� ���G�[C��"��"��� ��A������#D"��A#�C���C���!��B#���?��B#��#������"��A#�C��F��""��A� �RQGQ\��C���!�G��]�F�?�C� ��������#��?�  #�>�B#���?������ #��!��F��������#���� �B#���������A��!�D"�!�� �D����#������?���G�]��D����?�C� ���B�����������������# ��B#�����A������#���!���������?�#!�?��#� �?�C� �����������#��������#�����FG��]�F�D����#����C�� �����#���B#���?������� ��""��"�#����F��� ���������#���!�������D���C����#�!�C #�>��#������!������� #D������>��B#���?��C�� ������!�����FG��<���������=#�>�����!!�D"�#�������"��D#��#�>��""��A������ �!�D"�������#��B��=������������"���#?�������A�# ����>��� #��C"�#������������#>�?����� G�<�������������=#�>�����#�����F�A��#��!����� �B����A��!����C��F�D���������!�DD�� � ���>C���#����������� �!�"��C� �������K#�F����J#�!�B�� ��� #���!��G����
8



���������	
�	��	���	
�������
���	����
������	���������������������������� ��!�"#�$�%�&'()�'*�+,-�*./-0�(-12.+�*'1�&'30.+.'34/�56-�7�/4306&4(-�8'19:���;�<����		��������������=>�?>�;!�"#�$�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�*'124/�6.+-�651A-)�&-1+.*.&4+-B�6,'8.3C�0-+4./�'*�4//�-/-A4+.'36�430�&'3+'516:����������������D!=!��!�"#�$�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�(1'('6-0�/4306&4(-�8'19�+'�E-�0'3-�'3�6.+-:���;�<���"F  "��G�!>���HI�H���JK>;D>��L!�"#�$�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�*.34/�,'56-�&'36+15&+.'3�E/5-(1.3+6B�4//�,4A-�E--3�(1-A.'56/)�4((1'A-0�430�(-12.++-0:����M����
N���������
!�"#�$�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�-O.6+.3C�/4306&4(-�6.+-�(/43�'*�&'30.+.'36�'3�6.+-�46�1-P5-6+-0�+'�E-�(1'A.0-0�E)�+,-�Q.+)�'*�R.1&,8''0�*'1�+,-�/4306&4(-�(-12.++.3C�(1'&-66:���������	
�������	
����
!�"#�$�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�(1'('6-0�6.+-�&'36+15&+.'3�(/43�6.+-�46�1-P5-6+-0�+'�E-�(1'A.0-0�E)�+,-�Q.+)�'*�R.1&,8''0�*'1�/4306&4(-�(-12.++.3C�(1'&-66:���N���S�����"���?����S�H��SI������!�"#�T�@,.6�.6�4�&'()�'*�+,-�.365143&-�&-1+.*.&4+-�*'1�+,-�/4306&4(-�&'2(43)�+,4+�8.//�E-�(-1*'12.3C�8'19�'3�6.+-:�

9



Permit Information

General Information
Permit # A23-0027 Parcel # 1903021330001 Building ID

Location 127 WILDWOOD AVE, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD

Permit Type Conditional Use Permit Permit Use Land Disturbance (slopes toward a lake,
pond, wetland, watercourse)

Zone Permit # Subdivision

Applicant Name Ami Johannson Address 10092 Stillwater Lane

Applicant Email ami@greenersidemn.com Phone 6512525402 Cell

Owner Name ALAN T & SUSAN S REISS LIV TRS Address 20693 ENCHANTMENT DR N, SURPRISE
AZ 85387

Owner Email Phone Cell

Contractor Address

Contractor Email Phone Cell

Property Information
Type/Improveme
nt

Accessory/Struct
ure

Current Use Proposed Use

Current Zoning Proposed Zoning

Project Cost Project Value

Current Use And
Proposed
Changes

Lot Width Lot Depth Map Number

Total Area of Building & Accessory
Structures (Sq Ft)

Total Area of All Man-made Improvements
(Sq Ft)

General Notes

Restrictions /
Variances

© CIVICGov Online Portal Page 1 of 3 September 7, 2023 10:14AM10



11



12



13



14



302.070 CITY FENCE ORDINANCE. 

 
1. Zoning Permit. A Zoning Permit (see Sections 301.080.1.b and 
307) shall be obtained from the City before installing or 
constructing any fence for any purpose. A site drawing showing the 
location of the fence shall be submitted with the permit application. 
An application for a fence permit shall be accompanied by a 
current certificate of survey providing exact lot dimensions; the 
location of existing buildings, structures, and easements on the lot; 
and the location of the proposed fence or retaining wall. At the 
discretion of the City, a final plat detail or aerial map of the lot with 
the required information shown may suffice if no certificate of 
survey is available. Applicant shall be required to physically 
identify the property corners for City inspection.  

 

1. Notice to Neighbors. Any applicant 
for a Zoning Permit to construct a fence shall notify all 
abutting property owners at least five (5) days prior to 
submitting the application for a Zoning Permit. 

 

2. Location. All fences shall be located entirely upon the property of the fence 
owner. 

 

3. Height. No fence shall exceed six 
feet six inches (78”) in height above grade at any point. Posts 
shall not exceed 12 inches above the adjacent fence. 

 

4. Retaining Walls. Solid walls in excess 
of four (4) feet high shall be prohibited unless they are part of a 
building. 

 

5. Materials. Fences in excess of four (4) 
feet in height shall be at least thirty percent (30%) open through 
the entire surface area of the fence. All fences shall be 
constructed and maintained in a substantial manner and of 
material reasonably suited for the purpose for which the fence is 
proposed to be used. That side of the fence considered to be the 
face (or most attractive side of the fence) shall face toward 
abutting properties. Electrified and Barb Wire fences are not 
allowed. 
 
7. Traffic Visibility. Fences may not adversely affect traffic 
visibility. 
 
8.  Drainage.  No fence shall obstruct drainage. 

15



 
9. Fences or retaining walls may, by permit, be located within 
public easements if the following conditions are met: 
 
  a. The fence or retaining wall shall 
not be located within the 100-year high water level of a 
waterbody or watercourse, and  
  c. The fence or retaining wall shall 
not interfere in any way with any existing underground or over 
ground utility. 
  d. The City or any utility company 
having authority to use such public easements, shall not be liable 
for repair or replacement of such fence, retaining wall or 
appurtenance in the event they are moved, damaged, or 
destroyed by virtue of the lawful use of said easement. 
 
10. Maintenance.  Every fence shall be maintained in a condition 
of reasonable repair and shall not be allowed to become and 
remain in a condition of disrepair or danger, or constitute a 
nuisance, public or private. Any such fence or retaining wall 
which is or has become dangerous to the public safety, health, or 
welfare is a public nuisance, and the City shall commence 
proper proceedings for the abatement thereof. 
 
11. Fence Height: 
 
a. Fences of a maximum height above grade of six feet six 
inches (78”) are allowed behind the front wall of the principal 
building.  Fences in front of the front wall of the principal 
building are limited to 4 feet in height above grade. See the 
diagram below: 
 
 
 

16



 
 
b. 
Should 
the rear 
lot line 
of a lot 
be 

common with the side lot line of an abutting lot, that portion of 
the rear and/or side lot equal to the required front lot line 
structure  setback of the abutting lot shall not be fenced or 
walled to a height of more than four (4) feet. See the diagram 
below: 

17



 

18


	September 28 2023 PC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	September 28 2023 PC Meeting Agenda Packet.pdf
	6.22.2023 Birchwood Planning Commission Minutes (Draft).pdf
	127 WIldwood CUP Documents.pdf
	PC Memo - 127 Wildwood Ave CUP - Reiss.pdf
	Description of Landcape Work Proposed.pdf
	236_PermitsDetailsReport.pdf
	REISS PERMIT 9.8.23.pdf
	SITE CONSTRUCTION PLAN.pdf
	EXISTING SITE PLAN.pdf
	127 WILDWOOD CERTIFICATE 8-30-21.pdf

	fence ordinance update.pdf




